

# Christmas Island Utilities and Services (Water, Sewerage and Building Application Services Fees) Determination 2016

made under paragraph 7(2)(a) of the

Christmas Island Utilities and Services Ordinance 2016

### Compilation No. 2

**Compilation date:** 1 July 2018

**Includes amendments up to:** F2018L00866

**Registered:** 2 July 2018

Prepared by the Office of Parliamentary Counsel, Canberra

### About this compilation

#### This compilation

This is a compilation of the *Christmas Island Utilities and Services (Water, Sewerage and Building Application Services Fees) Determination 2016* that shows the text of the law as amended and in force on 1 July 2018 (the *compilation date*).

The notes at the end of this compilation (the *endnotes*) include information about amending laws and the amendment history of provisions of the compiled law.

#### **Uncommenced amendments**

The effect of uncommenced amendments is not shown in the text of the compiled law. Any uncommenced amendments affecting the law are accessible on the Legislation Register (www.legislation.gov.au). The details of amendments made up to, but not commenced at, the compilation date are underlined in the endnotes. For more information on any uncommenced amendments, see the series page on the Legislation Register for the compiled law.

#### Application, saving and transitional provisions for provisions and amendments

If the operation of a provision or amendment of the compiled law is affected by an application, saving or transitional provision that is not included in this compilation, details are included in the endnotes.

#### **Editorial changes**

For more information about any editorial changes made in this compilation, see the endnotes.

#### **Modifications**

If the compiled law is modified by another law, the compiled law operates as modified but the modification does not amend the text of the law. Accordingly, this compilation does not show the text of the compiled law as modified. For more information on any modifications, see the series page on the Legislation Register for the compiled law.

#### **Self-repealing provisions**

If a provision of the compiled law has been repealed in accordance with a provision of the law, details are included in the endnotes.

Authorised Version F2018C00410 registered 02/07/2018

## Contents

Part 1—Pr	elimina	ary	1
	1	Name	1
	3	Authority	1
	4	Definitions	
	5	Categories of land	2
Part 2—Fe	es		4
	6	Fees	4
	7	Concessions for eligible pensioners and eligible seniors	5
	8	Payment of fees	6
	9	When a fee is not paid	6
	10	Special payment arrangements	6
Schedule		xed fees for the supply of water services	8
	1	Fixed fees for the supply of water services	8
Schedule	2—Fi	xed fees for the supply of sewerage services	9
	1	Fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services	9
Schedule	3—Q	uantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage	
	ser	vices	11
	1	Quantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage services	11
	2	Calculation of kilolitres of water used—quantity fee for discharge to sewer	
		for commercial, government or industrial land	12
	3	Discharge factor	12
Schedule	4—Fe	ees for the supply of other water and sewerage	
	ser	vices	13
	1	Fees for the supply of other water and sewerage services	_
C-11-1-	<i>-</i> ID.		
Scheaule		ees for the supply of building application services	
	tha	it relate to water and sewerage services	14
	1	Fees for the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services	14
Endnotes			15
Endnot	e 1—Al	bout the endnotes	15
Endnot	e 2—Al	bbreviation key	16
Endnot	e 3—Le	egislation history	17
Endnot	e 4—Ar	mendment history	18



### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1 Name

This is the *Christmas Island Utilities and Services (Water, Sewerage and Building Application Services Fees) Determination 2016.* 

#### 3 Authority

This instrument is made under paragraph 7(2)(a) of the *Christmas Island Utilities* and Services Ordinance 2016.

#### 4 Definitions

In this instrument:

charitable purposes land: see subsection 5(10).

commercial land: see subsection 5(4).

commercial/residential land: see subsection 5(3).

discharge factor, for a property: see clause 3 of Schedule 3.

*eligible pensioner* has the same meaning as in subsection 3(1) of the *Rates and Charges (Rebates and Deferments) Act 1992* (WA) (CI).

*eligible senior* has the same meaning as in subsection 3(1) of the *Rates and Charges (Rebates and Deferments) Act 1992* (WA) (CI).

fire service means a water supply connection provided for fire-fighting purposes.

government land: see subsection 5(7).

gross rental value, of land, has the same meaning as in subsection 4(1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1978 (WA) (CI).

holiday accommodation, of an owner or occupier, means accommodation that is:

- (a) held out as being available, or made available, by the owner or occupier for occupation for holiday purposes by persons other than the owner or occupier; and
- (b) not held out, or made available, substantially:
  - (i) by way of trade or business; or
  - (ii) for the purpose of any trade or business.

industrial land: see subsection 5(5).

institutional/public land: see subsection 5(9).

Registered: 2/7/18

*local government land*: see subsection 5(11).

major fixture means any of the following:

- (a) a water closet;
- (b) each urinal outlet contained within a floor-mounted urinal;
- (c) each stand of wall-hung urinals contained within a separate ablution area;
- (d) a pan washer.

mining land: see subsection 5(8).

*occupier*, in relation to land, means the person in occupation of the land or, if there is no person in occupation, the person entitled to possession of the land.

*owner*, in relation to land, has the same meaning as in section 1.4 of the *Local Government Act 1995* (WA) (CI).

*residence* means a private dwelling house, home unit or flat, including any yard, garden, outhouse or appurtenance belonging to, or usually enjoyed with, the private dwelling house, home unit or flat.

residential land: see subsection 5(2).

vacant land: see subsection 5(6).

#### 5 Categories of land

- (1) This section defines categories of land for the purposes of this instrument.
- (2) Land is *residential land* if:
  - (a) the land is used wholly or primarily for the purpose of providing a residence for one or more of the following:
    - (i) the owner or occupier of the land;
    - (ii) the family of the owner or occupier of the land;
    - (iii) the employees of the owner or occupier of the land; and
  - (b) the land is not used, in whole or in part, for the purpose of providing holiday accommodation.
- (3) Land is *commercial/residential land* if:
  - (a) the land is used, but not wholly or primarily, for the purpose mentioned in paragraph (a) of the definition of *residential land*; and
  - (b) the land is used for one or more of the following purposes:
    - (i) a shop;
    - (ii) a workshop;
    - (iii) an office;
    - (iv) a bakery;
    - (v) a surgery;
    - (vi) any other business purpose.

Compilation No. 2 Compilation date: 1/7/18 Registered: 2/7/18

#### (4) Land is *commercial land* if:

- (a) the land is used for one or more of the following purposes:
  - (i) conducting a business;
  - (ii) the practice of a profession;
  - (iii) holiday accommodation;
  - (iv) any other commercial purpose; and
- (b) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

#### (5) Land is *industrial land* if:

- (a) the land is used for manufacturing or processing; and
- (b) the manufacturing or processing cannot be conducted without the use of water; and
- (c) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

#### (6) Land is *vacant land* if:

- (a) there is no building on the land; and
- (b) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

#### (7) Land is *government land* if:

- (a) the land is used by the Commonwealth Government or the government of a State for business, professional, commercial, or office purposes, or as a power station; and
- (b) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

#### (8) Land is *mining land* if:

- (a) the land is used for the purposes of mining; and
- (b) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

#### (9) Land is institutional/public land if:

- (a) the land is used for a club, institutional or public purpose that has been approved by the Administrator by notice in writing given to the owner or occupier of the land; and
- (b) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

## (10) Land is *charitable purposes land* if the land is used for one of the following purposes:

- (a) providing relief or assistance to persons who are sick, aged, disadvantaged, unemployed or young;
- (b) the conduct of activities:
  - (i) by a private organisation that is not operated for the purpose of profit or gain to individual members, shareholders or owners; and
  - (ii) for the benefit of the public or in the interests of social welfare.

#### (11) Land is *local government land* if:

- (a) the land is used by a local government for business or office purposes; and
- (b) the land is not used for any other purpose mentioned in this section.

Registered: 2/7/18

#### Part 2—Fees

#### 6 Fees

Determination of fees that may be charged for the supply of services

- (1) This instrument determines fees that may be charged for the supply of water and sewerage services, and the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services, for a financial year.
- (2) The fees determined by this instrument apply from and including 1 July 2018.
- (3) The fees that may be charged are the following:
  - (a) fixed fees for the supply of water services as set out in Schedule 1;
  - (b) fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services as set out in Schedule 2;
  - (c) quantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage services as set out in Schedule 3;
  - (d) fees for the supply of other water and sewerage services as set out in Schedule 4;
  - (e) fees for the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services as set out in Schedule 5.

Note: Other fees for the supply of utilities or services may be payable under an applied law. For example, fees for infrastructure contributions are payable under the *Water Services Act 2012* (WA) (CI).

- (3A) Despite paragraph (3)(a), if, in relation to particular land, the Administrator agrees, in writing, with the owner or occupier of the land on an amount of fixed fees for the supply of water services that is lower than the amount of fixed fees for the land as set out in Schedule 1, the amount of fixed fees for the supply of water services for the land is determined to be the amount agreed.
  - (4) Despite paragraph (3)(c), if, in relation to particular land, the Administrator agrees, in writing, with the owner or occupier of the land on an amount of quantity fees that is lower than the amount of quantity fees for the land as set out in Schedule 3, the amount of quantity fees for the land is determined to be the amount agreed.
- (4A) The amount agreed under subsection (3A) or (4) may be a nil amount.
- (4B) The Administrator may arrange for an agreement mentioned in subsection (3A) or (4) to be published on the Department's website.

Method of charging fees—notice to owner or occupier of land

(5) If the Administrator charges a fee for the supply of a service mentioned in this instrument, the Administrator must do so by sending a notice to the owner or occupier of the land:

Compilation No. 2 Compilation date: 1/7/18 Registered: 2/7/18

- (a) to which the service is supplied (for a service mentioned in any of Schedules 1 to 4); or
- (b) to which the service relates (for a service mentioned in Schedule 5).

Note: The fee must also be notified in the Gazette—see section 8 of the *Christmas Island Utilities and Services Ordinance 2016*.

- (6) The notice must specify:
  - (a) the amount of the fee payable; and
  - (b) the day by which the fee must be paid.
- (7) The day specified in the notice must be at least 16 days after the day the notice is sent to the owner or occupier.

Liability to pay fee and payment of fee

- (8) If the Administrator sends the notice under subsection (5) to the owner or occupier:
  - (a) the owner or occupier is liable to pay the fee specified in the notice; and
  - (b) the fee is payable to the Administrator on behalf of the Commonwealth.

#### 7 Concessions for eligible pensioners and eligible seniors

Fixed fees for water or sewerage services—eligible pensioners

- (1) Despite paragraphs 6(3)(a) and (b), an eligible pensioner may pay a fee mentioned in Schedule 1 or 2 at the pensioner rate if:
  - (a) the pensioner is the owner and occupier of residential land; and
  - (b) the fee applies in relation to the land.

Quantity fees for water and sewerage services—eligible pensioners

- (2) Despite paragraph 6(3)(c), an eligible pensioner may pay a fee mentioned in Schedule 3 at the pensioner rate, for up to 600 kilolitres of water used, if:
  - (a) the pensioner is the occupier of residential land; and
  - (b) the fee applies in relation to the land.

Fixed fees for water or sewerage services—eligible seniors

- (3) Despite paragraphs 6(3)(a) and (b), an eligible senior may pay a fee mentioned in Schedule 1 or 2 at the senior rate if:
  - (a) the senior is the owner and occupier of residential land; and
  - (b) the fee applies in relation to the land.

**Definitions** 

(4) In this section:

pensioner rate means a fee mentioned in Schedule 1, 2 or 3, reduced by 50%.

Registered: 2/7/18

*senior rate* means a fee mentioned in Schedule 1 or 2, reduced by 25%.

#### 8 Payment of fees

Subject to section 10, a fee that applies to an owner or occupier of land in accordance with this instrument is due for payment on or before the day specified in a notice under subsection 6(5).

#### 9 When a fee is not paid

- (1) This section applies if:
  - (a) an owner or occupier of land has not paid a fee for the supply of a service to, or in relation to, the land, in accordance with a notice under subsection 6(5); and
  - (b) at least 14 days have elapsed after the day specified in the notice as the day by which the fee must be paid; and
  - (c) a special payment arrangement under section 10 is not in force between the Administrator and the owner or occupier in relation to the fee.
- (2) The Administrator must send a reminder notice to the owner or occupier advising the owner or occupier that the Administrator may restrict access to the service if the fee is not paid within 10 days of the date of the reminder notice.
- (3) If the fee is not paid within 10 days of the date of the reminder notice, the Administrator may send the owner or occupier a notice to restrict.
- (4) The notice to restrict must tell the owner or occupier that, unless the fee is paid within the period stated in the notice to restrict, action may be taken to restrict access to the service
- (5) The period mentioned in subsection (4) must not be less than 7 days.
- (6) If the owner or occupier does not pay the fee within the period stated in the notice to restrict, the Administrator may restrict the supply of the service to the land until:
  - (a) the owner or occupier has paid:
    - (i) the fee; and
    - (ii) if the Administrator charges a fee for restoring the service after the restriction—that fee; or
  - (b) a special payment arrangement under section 10 is in force between the Administrator and the owner or occupier in relation to the fee.

#### 10 Special payment arrangements

(1) The Administrator may agree, in writing, to a special payment arrangement with an owner or occupier of land if:

- (a) the owner or occupier is experiencing difficulties in paying a fee mentioned in this instrument for the supply of a service to, or in relation to, the land; and
- (b) the owner or occupier notifies the Administrator of the difficulties.
- (2) If a special payment arrangement under this section is in force between the Administrator and the owner or occupier in relation to a fee, the fee is due for payment in accordance with the arrangement.

## Schedule 1—Fixed fees for the supply of water services

Note: See paragraph 6(3)(a).

#### 1 Fixed fees for the supply of water services

(1) The table in this clause sets out fixed fees for the supply of water services.

Note: An eligible pensioner or eligible senior may pay a fee at a reduced rate—see subsections 7(1) and (3).

(2) If an additional water service is required, the fees mentioned in the table also apply to that additional service.

Fixed fees for the supply of water services			
Item	Supply of water services to	Fixed fee	
1	residential land	\$257.90	
2	commercial land or industrial land (other than land mentioned in item 5), commercial/residential land, mining land or government land, or shipping (supply of water services to land for the purpose of water being taken on board a ship in a port), with:		
	(a) no meter or a 15 or 20 mm meter	\$265.41	
	(b) a 25 mm meter	\$414.74	
	(c) a 40 mm meter	\$1,061.73	
	(d) a 50 mm meter	\$1,658.93	
	(e) a 80 mm meter	\$4,246.85	
	(f) a 100 mm meter	\$6,635.71	
	(g) a 150 mm meter	\$14,930.34	
3	institutional/public land, charitable purposes land or local government land	Nil	
4	vacant land	\$257.90	
5	strata-titled commercial land or industrial land, if sharing a water service	\$265.41	
6	any land, for the supply of a fire service	\$265.41	

## Schedule 2—Fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services

Note: See paragraph 6(3)(b).

#### 1 Fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services

The table in this clause sets out fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services.

Note: An eligible pensioner or eligible senior may pay a fee at a reduced rate—see

subsections 7(1) and (3).

Fixed fe	Fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services		
Item	Supply of sewerage services to	Fixed fee	
1	residential land:		
	(a) rate in the dollar	\$0.1409 per \$1 of gross rental value	
	(b) minimum annual fee	\$428.39	
	(c) maximum annual fee	\$1,169.54	
2	commercial land or industrial land (other than land mentioned in item 6) or mining land:		
	(a) first major fixture	\$996.27	
	(b) second major fixture	\$426.46	
	(c) third major fixture	\$569.53	
	(d) each subsequent major fixture	\$619.33	
	(e) minimum annual fee	\$996.27	
3	vacant land:		
	(a) rate in the dollar	\$0.1409 per \$1 of gross rental value	
	(b) minimum annual fee	\$281.89	
	(c) maximum annual fee (if zoned for future residential use)	\$1,169.54	
4	institutional/public land, charitable purposes land or local government land:		
	(a) first major fixture	\$267.67	
	(b) each subsequent major fixture	\$117.77	
5	government land:		
	(a) first major fixture	\$996.27	
	(b) second major fixture	\$426.46	
	(c) third major fixture	\$569.53	
	(d) each subsequent major fixture	\$619.33	

#### Clause 1

10

Fixed fees for the supply of sewerage services		
Item	Supply of sewerage services to	Fixed fee
6	strata-titled commercial land or industrial land, if sharing a major	
	fixture	\$619.33

11

## Schedule 3—Quantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage services

Note: See paragraph 6(3)(c).

#### 1 Quantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage services

The table in this clause sets out quantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage services.

Note: An eligible pensioner may pay a fee at a reduced rate—see subsection 7(2).

Quantity fees for the supply of water and sewerage services		
Item	Supply of water and sewerage services to	Quantity fee (per kL of water used)
1	residential land or vacant land that has been zoned for residential purposes:	
	(a) 0 to 350 kL	\$1.782
	(b) 351 to 500 kL	\$2.375
	(c) 501 to 750 kL	\$5.270
	(d) over 750 kL	\$9.062
2	commercial/residential land:	
	(a) 0 to 150 kL	\$1.782
	(b) over 150 kL	\$8.353
3	vacant land not mentioned in item 1	\$8.353
4	government land	\$8.353
5	institutional/public land used for non-government schools, churches or community facilities, charitable purposes land or local government land	\$2.534
6	commercial land, industrial land or mining land, or shipping (supply of water services to land for the purpose of water being taken on board a ship in a port)	\$8.353
7	commercial land, government land or industrial land—discharge to sewer:	
	(a) 0 to 200 kL per property (allowance)	Nil
	(b) over 200 kL	\$3.660

## 2 Calculation of kilolitres of water used—quantity fee for discharge to sewer for commercial, government or industrial land

For item 6 of the table in clause 1, the number of kilolitres of water used in a period for a property is worked out using the following formula:

Number of kilolitres assessed by the Authority as having been used by the owner or occupier of the property in the period

#### 3 Discharge factor

The *discharge factor*, for calculating the number of kilolitres of water used in a period for a property, is the following percentage of the water supplied to the property in the period:

- (a) if paragraph (b) does not apply—95%;
- (b) if the Administrator agrees, in writing, with the owner or occupier of the property on a percentage that is lower than 95%—the agreed percentage.

## Schedule 4—Fees for the supply of other water and sewerage services

Note: See paragraph 6(3)(d).

#### 1 Fees for the supply of other water and sewerage services

(1) The table in this clause sets out fees for the supply of water and sewerage services other than those mentioned in Schedules 1 to 3.

Fees for the supply of other water and sewerage services		
Item	Type of service	Fee
1	Relocation of service	quoted cost
2	Disconnection or reconnection of water service	quoted cost
3	Special meter readings for change of owner/occupier:	
	(a) within 7 days of being requested	
	(b) within 2 days of being requested	\$16.99
		\$57.10
4	Advice of sale requests:	
	(a) electronic advice—standard	\$45.13
	(b) electronic advice—urgent	\$85.14
	(c) manual advice—standard	\$77.43
	(d) manual advice—urgent	\$117.12
5	Meter tests:	
	(a) 20 to 25 mm meters	
	(b) over 25 mm meters	\$109.09
		quoted cost
6	Restoration of service after restriction:	
	(a) between 7 am and 4 pm any day except Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday	\$156.16
	(b) any other time	\$248.14
7	Sewer connection	quoted cost
8	Installation of sewer junction	quoted cost

#### (2) In the table:

*actual cost*, for a meter test, is the cost incurred in removing the meter and sending it for testing.

*quoted cost*, for a service, means the cost quoted by a contractor engaged to perform the service.

#### Clause 1

14

# Schedule 5—Fees for the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services

Note: See paragraph 6(3)(e).

## 1 Fees for the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services

The table in this clause sets out fees for the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services.

Fees for the supply of building application services that relate to water and sewerage services		
Item	Supply of the building application service of dealing with a notice to construct or alter	Fee
1	a residential building	\$125.99 per residential unit
2	an outbuilding to a single residential building, including pools, garages and pergolas (in sewered areas only)	\$36.78
3	a multi-residential unit building	\$125.99 per residential unit
4	a building other than a residential building or a multi-residential unit building at a cost of:	
	(a) not more than \$22,500 (sewered area only)	\$25.00
	(b) more than \$22,500 but not more than \$200,000	\$85.00
	(c) more than \$200,000 but not more than \$500,000	\$330.00
	(d) more than \$500,000 but not more than \$1 million	\$550.00
5	a building other than a residential building or a multi-residential unit building at a cost of more than \$1 million but not more than \$10 million	\$0.90 per \$1,000 of the building cost
6	a building other than a residential building or a multi-residential unit building at a cost of more than \$10 million	The sum of:  (a) \$9,000.00; and  (b) \$0.25 per \$1,000  of the building cost over \$10  million

#### **Endnotes**

#### **Endnote 1—About the endnotes**

The endnotes provide information about this compilation and the compiled law.

The following endnotes are included in every compilation:

Endnote 1—About the endnotes

Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Endnote 4—Amendment history

#### Abbreviation key—Endnote 2

The abbreviation key sets out abbreviations that may be used in the endnotes.

#### Legislation history and amendment history—Endnotes 3 and 4

Amending laws are annotated in the legislation history and amendment history.

The legislation history in endnote 3 provides information about each law that has amended (or will amend) the compiled law. The information includes commencement details for amending laws and details of any application, saving or transitional provisions that are not included in this compilation.

The amendment history in endnote 4 provides information about amendments at the provision (generally section or equivalent) level. It also includes information about any provision of the compiled law that has been repealed in accordance with a provision of the law.

#### **Editorial changes**

The *Legislation Act 2003* authorises First Parliamentary Counsel to make editorial and presentational changes to a compiled law in preparing a compilation of the law for registration. The changes must not change the effect of the law. Editorial changes take effect from the compilation registration date.

If the compilation includes editorial changes, the endnotes include a brief outline of the changes in general terms. Full details of any changes can be obtained from the Office of Parliamentary Counsel.

#### Misdescribed amendments

A misdescribed amendment is an amendment that does not accurately describe the amendment to be made. If, despite the misdescription, the amendment can be given effect as intended, the amendment is incorporated into the compiled law and the abbreviation "(md)" added to the details of the amendment included in the amendment history.

If a misdescribed amendment cannot be given effect as intended, the abbreviation "(md not incorp)" is added to the details of the amendment included in the amendment history.

#### Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

#### **Endnote 2—Abbreviation key**

ad = added or inserted

am = amended

amdt = amendment

c = clause(s)

C[x] = Compilation No. x

Ch = Chapter(s) def = definition(s)

Dict = Dictionary

disallowed = disallowed by Parliament

Div = Division(s) ed = editorial change

exp = expires/expired or ceases/ceased to have

effect

F = Federal Register of Legislation

gaz = gazette

LA = Legislation Act 2003

LIA = Legislative Instruments Act 2003

(md) = misdescribed amendment can be given

effect

16

(md not incorp) = misdescribed amendment

cannot be given effect

mod = modified/modification

No. = Number(s)

o = order(s)

Ord = Ordinance

orig = original

par = paragraph(s)/subparagraph(s)

/sub-subparagraph(s)

pres = present

prev = previous

(prev...) = previously

Pt = Part(s)

r = regulation(s)/rule(s)

reloc = relocated

renum = renumbered

rep = repealed

rs = repealed and substituted

s = section(s)/subsection(s)

Sch = Schedule(s)

Sdiv = Subdivision(s)

SLI = Select Legislative Instrument

SR = Statutory Rules

Sub-Ch = Sub-Chapter(s)

SubPt = Subpart(s)

 $\underline{\text{underlining}} = \text{whole or part not}$ 

commenced or to be commenced

### **Endnote 3—Legislation history**

Name	Registration	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Christmas Island Utilities and Services (Water, Sewerage and Building Application Services Fees) Determination 2016	30 June 2016 (F2016L01125)	1 July 2016 (s 2(1) item 1)	
Christmas Island Utilities and Services (Water, Sewerage and Building Application Services Fees) Amendment (2017 Measures No. 1) Determination 2017	26 June 2017 (F2017L00747)	27 June 2017 (s 2(1) item 1)	_
Christmas Island Utilities and Services (Water, Sewerage and Building Application Services Fees) Amendment (2018 Measures No. 1) Determination 2018	25 June 2018 (F2018L00866)	1 July 2018 (s 2(1) item 1)	_

#### **Endnotes**

18

#### Endnote 4—Amendment history

#### **Endnote 4—Amendment history**

Provision affected	How affected
s 2	rep LA s 48D
s 6	am F2017L00747; F2018L00866
Schedule 1	
Schedule 1	am F2017L00747; F2018L00866
Schedule 2	
Schedule 2	am F2017L00747; F2018L00866
Schedule 3	
Schedule 3	am F2017L00747; F2018L00866
Schedule 4	
Schedule 4	am F2017L00747; F2018L00866
Schedule 5	
Schedule 5	am F2017L00747; F2018L00866
Schedule 6	
Schedule 6	ad F2017L00747
	rep F2018L00866